
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
WESTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI

WESTERN DIVISION

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )   
                          )
               Plaintiff, )

                        )
            v.        )

)
MARK ALLEN KIEL,  )
[DOB: 05/05/1967],         )

)
and )

)
CODI MARIE McARDLE, )
[DOB: 12/12/1983], )

)
Defendants. )

No.   09-00328-01/02-CR-W-ODS                   

18 U.S.C. § 371
(Conspiracy to Commit Wire Fraud)

NMT Five Years Imprisonment
NMT $250,000 Fine
NMT Three Years Supervised Release
Class D Felony

Plus $100 Special Assessment

Allegation of Forfeiture
18 U.S.C. § 982(a)(2)(A) and
21 U.S.C. § 853
(Forfeiture)

INFORMATION

THE UNITED STATES ATTORNEY CHARGES THAT:

COUNT ONE
Introduction

1. At all times material to this Information:

a. Defendant MARK KIEL was employed as a loan officer for First National

Mortgage Sources, LLC and resided with co-defendant, CODI McARDLE.

b. Defendant CODI McARDLE purported to be employed as a loan officer for

First National Mortgage Sources, LLC during the years of 2006 and 2007.

c. Integrity Land Title Company, Incorporated, (hereinafter “Integrity”) was

engaged in the business of title insurance, real estate escrow, and closings.  Integrity has a number

of office locations throughout the Midwest, including in Liberty, Missouri.
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d. Legacy Land Title (hereinafter “Legacy”) was engaged in the business of title

insurance, real estate escrow, and closings.  It had an office at 8540 North Oak Trafficway, Kansas

City, Missouri, among other locations.

e. First National Mortgage Sources, LLC (hereinafter “FNMS”) was

headquartered in Overland Park, Kansas and was involved in the loan brokerage business and had

satellite offices nationwide.  FNMS loan officers/brokers would recruit individuals seeking

mortgages and would package mortgage loans to then sell to major mortgage companies.  At the

time of a real estate closing, FNMS would receive a check for loan and brokerage fees at its

headquarters in Kansas, and then disbursements would be made to individual loan brokers in the

various satellite offices from FNMS’s main office in Overland Park, Kansas or Hays, Kansas.

FNMS satellite offices were not allowed to open their own checking accounts under the name of

FNMS or First National Mortgage Solutions, LLC., and all payments at the time of a real estate

closing had to be disbursed through its main offices in Overland Park or Hays, Kansas.

f. An individual, whose identity is known to the United States Attorney’s Office,

worked as a closing title agent at Legacy in its Kansas City, Missouri, office and then later at the

Liberty, Missouri, office of Integrity in a similar capacity.

g. First Magnus Financial Corporation (hereinafter “First Magnus”), was

engaged in the business of making mortgage loans.  It was an Arizona corporation with its

headquarters in Tucson, Arizona, and several offices nationwide including in Overland Park,

Kansas.

h. Rockland Mortgage, LLC (hereinafter “Rockland”) was engaged in the

business of making mortgage loans.  It had an office in North Kansas City, Missouri.
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The Conspiracy and Its Object

2. Beginning on or about January 24, 2006, the exact date being unknown to the United

States Attorney’s Office, and continuing through on or about April 13, 2007, in the Western District

of Missouri, and elsewhere, defendants MARK KIEL and CODI McARDLE and others known and

unknown to the United States Attorney’s Office, combined, confederated and agreed with each other

and others known and unknown to the United States Attorney’s Office to obtain money from

mortgage lenders, and to retain the money obtained, by means of material false and fraudulent

pretenses, representations and promises, and by the concealment of material facts, and in the

execution of the said scheme to commit offenses against the United States, that is, to knowingly and

willfully transmit and cause to be transmitted in interstate commerce, wire communications, that is,

communications by facsimile communications and electronic mail, in furtherance of and for the

purpose of executing a scheme to defraud, in violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Sections 1343 and 2;

Purpose of the Conspiracy

3. The purpose of the conspiracy was to obtain money and other benefits by the sale and

purchase of residences at inflated prices, that is, to obtain mortgage loan proceeds, given in reliance

on material false and fraudulent representations and promises, and by the concealment of material

facts, for the personal financial and other benefit of the defendants and others known and unknown

to the United States Attorney’s Office.
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Scheme and Artifice to Defraud

4. It was a part of the conspiracy and scheme and artifice to defraud that defendants

MARK KIEL and CODI McARDLE would make arrangements for the purchase real estate

properties. 

5. It was a part of the conspiracy and scheme and artifice to defraud that defendants

MARK KIEL and CODI McARDLE, or others known and unknown to the United States Attorney’s

Office,  would arrange for the preparation of two HUD-1 Settlement Statement documents for a

particular mortgage transaction with different sales prices.

6. It was a part of the conspiracy and scheme and artifice to defraud that defendants

MARK KIEL and CODI McARDLE, or others known and unknown to the United States Attorney’s

Office, would cause the HUD-1 Settlement Statement with the actual sales price to be disclosed to

the seller of the property at the time of the closing. 

7. It was a part of the conspiracy and scheme and artifice to defraud that defendants

MARK KIEL and CODI McARDLE, or others known and unknown to the United States Attorney’s

Office, would cause the HUD-1 Settlement Statement with the fraudulently inflated sales price to

be disclosed to the mortgage lender of the property at the time of the closing. 

8. It was a part of the conspiracy and scheme and artifice to defraud that defendants

MARK KIEL and CODI McARDLE, or others known and unknown to the United States Attorney’s

Office, would cause the title company to issue fraudulent disbursement checks from the inflated

proceeds provided by the mortgage lenders.

7. As a result of this conspiracy and scheme and artifice to defraud, the defendant and

others known to the United States Attorney’s Office, caused First Magnus, Rockland Mortgage, and

other mortgage lenders to provide financing for approximately 37 different mortgage transactions
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resulting in $438,048.16 in excess funding based upon materially false and fraudulent pretenses,

representations and promises which were contained in the closing documents.

Overt Acts

8. In furtherance of the conspiracy and to accomplish the object of the conspiracy, one

or more members of the conspiracy committed and caused to be committed the following overt acts

in the Western District of Missouri and elsewhere:

a. On or about June 13, 2006, MARK KIEL and CODI McARDLE caused to

be opened at M & I Bank an account in the named of “First National Mortgage Solutions, LLC” with

MARK KIEL as the owner of the account and CODI McARDLE as an authorized signer on the

account.

b. On or about December 12, 2006, at  Legacy Land Title’s office located at

8540 North Oak Trafficway, Kansas City, Missouri, caused to be prepared and executed a HUD-1

Settlement Statement document in connection with the sale of 5322 N. Palmer Avenue, Kansas City,

Missouri, which listed the contract sale price as $93,000.00, which Settlement Statement was

provided to the seller.

c. On or about December 12, 2006, at Legacy Land Title’s office located at

8540 North Oak Trafficway, Kansas City, Missouri, caused to be prepared and executed a fraudulent

HUD-1 Settlement Statement document in connection with the sale of 5322 N. Palmer Avenue,

Kansas City, Missouri, which fraudulently listed the contract sale price as $122,000.00, which

Settlement Statement was provided to the mortgage lender First Magnus.
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d. On or about December 13, 2006, caused First Magnus to wire transfer

$121,184.64 from an account in Tucson, Arizona to the Legacy Land Title escrow account at

Union Bank in Kansas City, Missouri, in connection with the closing of 5322 N. Palmer Avenue,

Kansas City, Missouri.

e. On or about December 13, 2006, caused check number 1052 to be issued by

Legacy Land Title made payable to “C. McArdle” for $29,340.00, out of the funds provided by

First Magnus in connection with the closing of 5322 N. Palmer Avenue, Kansas City, Missouri.

f. On or about December 14, 2006, caused check number 1052 to be endorsed

“C. McArdle” and the proceeds deposited into an M & I Bank account under the control of

MARK KIEL and CODI McARDLE.

g. On or about February 5, 2007, at  Legacy Land Title’s office located at

8540 North Oak Trafficway, Kansas City, Missouri, caused to be prepared and executed a HUD-1

Settlement Statement document in connection with the sale of 936 Hillside Avenue, Liberty,

Missouri, which listed the contract sale price as $90,000.00, which Settlement Statement was

provided to the seller.

h. On or about February 5, 2007, at  Legacy Land Title’s office located at

8540 North Oak Trafficway, Kansas City, Missouri, caused to be prepared and executed a HUD-1

Settlement Statement document in connection with the sale of 936 Hillside Avenue, Liberty,

Missouri, which fraudulently listed the contract sale price as $118,000.00, which Settlement

Statement was provided to the mortgage lender Rockland Mortgage, LLC..

i. On or about February 5, 2007, caused $118,000.00 to be wire transferred

from an account in Michigan City, Indiana to the Legacy Land Title escrow account at Union Bank

in Kansas City, Missouri, in connection with the closing of 936 Hillside Avenue, Liberty, Missouri.
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j. On or about February 5, 2007, caused check number 1339 to be issued by

Legacy Land Title made payable to “C. McArdle” for $24,843.09, out of the funds provided by

Rockland Mortgage in connection with the closing of 936 Hillside Avenue, Liberty, Missouri.

k. On or about February 7, 2007, caused check number 1339 to be endorsed

“Codi McArdle” and negotiated at M & I Bank.

l. On or about April 9, 2007, at  Legacy Land Title’s office located at

8540 North Oak Trafficway, Kansas City, Missouri, caused to be prepared and executed a HUD-1

Settlement Statement document in connection with the sale of 10805 N. Cosby  Avenue,

Kansas City, Missouri, which listed the contract sale price as $294,000.00, which Settlement

Statement was provided to the seller.

m. On or about April 9, 2007, at Legacy Land Title’s office located at 8540

North Oak Trafficway, Kansas City, Missouri, caused to be prepared and executed a fraudulent

HUD-1 Settlement Statement document in connection with the sale of 10805 N. Cosby Avenue,

Kansas City, Missouri, which fraudulently listed the contract sale price as $387,000.00, which

Settlement Statement was provided to the mortgage lender First Magnus.

n. On or about April 9, 2007, caused First Magnus to wire transfer $383,762.43

from an account in Tucson, Arizona to the Legacy Land Title escrow account at Union Bank in

Kansas City, Missouri, in connection with the mortgage transaction involving 10805 N. Cosby

Avenue, Kansas City, Missouri.

o. On or about April 9, 2007, caused check number 1627 to be issued by Legacy

Land Title made payable to FNMS for $93,783.88, out of the funds provided by First Magnus in

connection with the closing of 10805 N. Cosby Avenue, Kansas City, Missouri.
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p. On or about April 13, 2007, caused check number 1627 to be endorsed “Mark

Kiel” and deposited into an M & I Bank account under the control of MARK KIEL and

CODI McARDLE.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.

ALLEGATION OF FORFEITURE

1. The allegations of Count One of this Information are re-alleged and by this reference

fully incorporated herein for the purpose of alleging forfeiture to the United States of America of

certain property in which the defendants have an interest, pursuant to the provisions of Title 18,

United States Code, Section 982(a)(2)(A), and the procedures outlined in Title 21, United States

Code, Section 853.

2. Upon conviction of any violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343, or

a conspiracy to violate such sections, each defendant shall forfeit to the United States any property

constituting, or derived from, proceeds the person obtained directly or indirectly pursuant to

Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(a)(2)(A).

3. The property subject to forfeiture includes, but is not limited to, the following:

a. Money Judgment and Other Property Involved In or Traceable to the
Offense:

$438,048.16 in United States Currency, and any interest or proceeds

traceable thereto, representing the net proceeds obtained by defendants

MARK KIEL and CODI McARDLE, in that such sum in aggregate is

involved in, or is derived from, proceeds traceable to the scheme described

in the offense set forth in Count One.
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b. Substitute Assets

If the property described above as being subject to forfeiture as a result of

any act or omission of any defendant,

(1) cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

(2) has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with a third person;

(3) has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;

(4) has been substantially diminished in value; or

(5) has been commingled with other property which cannot be

subdivided without difficulty;

it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 21, United States Code,

Section 853(p), as incorporated by Title 18, United States Code,

Section 982(b), to seek forfeiture of any other property of the defendants up

to the value of the above-forfeitable property or to seek return of the property

to the jurisdiction of the Court so that the property may be seized and

forfeited.  Such property includes, but is not limited to, the following:

(i) a 2001 Thunderbird Formula, 40', Hull ID #TNRD1224A101,

named “It’s All About the Benjamins”
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All pursuant to the provisions of Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(a)(2)(A) and the

procedures outlined in Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p).

  Matt J. Whitworth
Acting United States Attorney

         By /s/ David M. Ketchmark

David M. Ketchmark
Assistant United States Attorney

Dated:    October 21, 2009    
Kansas City, Missouri
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